ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON NATURAL GAS DEVELOPMENT
June 2, 2006
11: 06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Lyda G een
Senator Gary W ken
Senat or Con Bunde
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senat or Bert Stednman
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner
Senat or Ben Stevens
Senator Kim Elton
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens
Senator Hollis French
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bettye Davis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 2003
"An Act establishing the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline
Corporation to finance, own, and manage the state's interest
in the Alaska North Slope natural gas pipeline project and
relating to that corporation and to subsidiary entities of
that corporation; relating to owner entities of the Al aska
North Sl ope natural gas pipeline project, including provisions
concerning Alaska North Slope natural gas pipeline project
indemities; establishing the gas pipeline project cash
reserves fund in the corporation and establishing the Al aska
natural gas pipeline construction loan fund in the Departnent
of Revenue; nmaki ng conform ng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -1- June 2, 2006



SENATE BILL NO. 2004
"An Act relating to the Al aska Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act,
including clarifications or provision of additional authority
for the developnent of stranded gas fiscal contract terns;
making a conformng anendnent to the Revised Uniform
Arbitration Act; relating to nunicipal inpact noney received
under the ternms of a stranded gas fiscal contract; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 2003

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE CORPORATI ON
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

05/ 31/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - HELD ON SECY' S
DESK

06/ 01/ 06 (S) NGD

06/ 01/ 06 (S) NGD AT 1:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

06/ 01/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 01/ 06 (S) M NUTE( NGD)

06/ 02/ 06 (S) NGD AT 11:15 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

BILL: SB 2004
SHORT TI TLE: STRANDED GAS DEVELOPMENT ACT AMENDMVENTS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

05/ 31/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - HELD ON SECY' S
DESK

06/ 01/ 06 (S) NGD

06/ 01/ 06 (S) NGD AT 1:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

06/ 01/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 01/ 06 (S) M NUTE( NGD)

06/ 02/ 06 (S) NGD AT 11:15 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

W TNESS REG STER

DENNI S BAI LEY

Legal and Research Services Division

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

State Capitol

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the constitutional aspects
of SB 2004.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 2- June 2, 2006



JI M BALDW N

Counsel to the Ofice of the Attorney General

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on sovereignty issues related
to SB 2004.

MAYOR STEVE THOVSON, CHAIR

Muni ci pal Advi sory G oup

Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on economcally and revenue
i mpacted nunicipalities in SB 2004.

JOSEPH K. DONOHUE

Preston Gates & Ellis

Counsel to the Governor

O fice of the Governor

PO Box 110001

Juneau, AK 99811-0001

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on the admnistration’s
position on SB 2003 and SB 2004.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS called the Senate Special Conmittee on
Natural Gas Devel opnent neeting to order at 11:06:00 AM
Present at the call to order were Senators Lyman Hoffman,
Donny O son, Fred Dyson, Bert Stedman, Gary W/ ken, Kim Elton,
Con Bunde, Thomas Wagoner, Lyda Geen, and Chair Ralph
Seekins; Senator Ben Stevens arrived shortly thereafter, and
Senator Al bert Kookesh arrived as the neeting was in progress.

SB 2004- STRANDED GAS DEVELOPMENT ACT ANMENDVENTS

11: 07: 02 AM
DENNI S  BAI LEY, Legal and Research Services Division,
Legislative Affairs Agency, said he would answer questi ons.

SENATOR WAGONER said that he would like to know what authority
the legislature mght be giving up if these anmendnents [SB
2004] to the Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act (SGDA) pass.

MR. BAILEY responded that there are essentially two areas in

the bill that mght be considered as conprom sing or eroding
t he power of the | egislature.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 3- June 2, 2006



The first is related to taxation. On page 3 of the bill,
beginning on line 3, there is a section that allows the
comm ssioner to negotiate ternms related to nodification of
taxes and another that allows himto negotiate credits.

The second is related to the waiver of sovereign immunity for
the entrance and enforcenent of arbitration awards, which is
al so on page 3, lines 29-31.

11:10: 16 AM

SENATOR BEN STEVENS arri ved.

11:10: 49 AM

MR. BAILEY sunmarized by saying that the bill essentially

grants power to the conmi ssioner to negotiate ternms. It really
isn't a question of eroding |egislative power.

11:11: 46 AM

SENATOR BUNDE asked M. Bailey if these two areas of erosion
are policy calls that are allowable, or if there is a question
of constitutionality.

MR. BAILEY answered that, whether the admnistration could
negotiate the change in taxes essentially outside of the
| egi slative process is a question of constitutional magnitude.

The state has the power to grant the authority to waive
sovereign immnity. It has done so in the general waiver of
sovereign immunity statute for contracts and tortes, and in
the specific statute related to federal wetland questions.
That is a legislative rather than a constitutional issue.

11: 13: 30 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the general waiver for contracts and
tortes would cover this particular contract.

MR. BAILEY answered that the intent of the bill is to waive
sovereign immunity for the purpose of entering an arbitration
award as a judgnent for enforcenent in federal court, and that
woul d not be covered by the general waiver.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, on page 3, lines 30-31, it reads
“consent to entrance and enforcenent of an arbitration award
in any state court in the United States that has jurisdiction
over the state.” He asked what state courts in the United
States have jurisdiction over Al aska.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -4- June 2, 2006



MR. BAILEY replied that he thinks Chair Seekins has identified
a |language problem in the bill, because he does not believe
there are any. It should read, “consent to entrance and
enforcenment of an arbitration award in any state court” then
the waiver applies “in the United States, it has jurisdiction
over the state.” It is a phrasing issue and really should be
clarified.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if it should read “any state of Al aska
court”.

MR. BAILEY replied that he would be reluctant to suggest a
nodi fication wi thout being really clear about what the intent
of the bill is.

CHAI R SEEKINS said that maybe he should ask that question of
the adm ni stration.

SENATOR DYSON wondered if the word “state” in line 31 really
means a state in which there is activity related to this
proj ect .

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Jim Baldwin if he could answer the
guesti on.

11:17:11 AM

JIM BALDWN, Counsel to the Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral
responded that the admnistration's purpose was to allow
enforcenent of arbitration awards outside the state of Al aska.
This anmendnent s intended to obtain the proper |ega
authority for that from the |egislature, because the 11'"
anmendnent of the constitution and other conmon-law theories
hold that the state is inmmune from suit outside of its
bor ders.

11: 20: 08 AM

SENATOR DYSON said he was thinking of the matter in reverse.
He asked if this would apply if the state were trying to
enforce conpliance with the terns of an arbitration agreenent
wi th a conpany headquartered outside of Al aska.

MR. BALDW N agreed that it m ght.

SENATOR DYSON said it appears to himthat there are at |east
three different instances in which the state m ght seek renedy
in another state’'s court, and that the conmttee really needs
to get clarification here.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 5- June 2, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the state would have to obtain the
concurrence of the attorney general in each instance, or if
this would provide for blanket approval.

MR. BALDWN said that the Attorney Ceneral’s signature on the
contract woul d provi de bl anket consent.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the attorney general, the governor, or
t he comm ssioner would sign the contract.

MR. BALDWN replied that there would be a special jurat on the
contract for the attorney general, on which he would express
hi s consent.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Baldwin to verify that there would be
bl anket consent to waive sovereign inmmunity or other inmmunity.
He asked what other immunity there is.

MR. BALDWN replied that there could be a form of policy-
making inmunity, but he isn't sure what is contenplated. He
thinks there is the potential for an inmmunity that would bar
this particular type of enforcenment action.

SENATOR ELTON said he was unconfortable wth the blanket
consent and that it might be better to have the attorney
general make a decision in each instance. He thought it would
be wi se to have a policy discussion on that point.

11: 24: 03 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS read parts of Section 3, page 2, regarding the
comm ssioner’s authority to develop a contract that “may
include terns for nodifications of taxes on oil and gas,
including ternms providing for periodic paynent in |lieu of one
or nore taxes” and terns related to credits for investnment. He
asked if this encroaches on the legislature’s power of
t axati on.

MR. BAILEY replied that the question is whether the
legislature is giving up its constitutional taxing authority
by permtting the conm ssioner to negotiate nodification of
taxes. This is an unresolved issue, but it appears that a
contractual nodification of the state’s taxing system would be
unconsti tutional .

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if other I|egislatures would be prevented
fromnodifying the taxes if they are included in the contract.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 6- June 2, 2006



VR. BAI LEY answered that, in general terns, if the
constitution permts inclusion of tax nodifications within the
contract, and those nodifications exist, then a subsequent
| egi sl ature would have difficulty changing the tax structure
because it would interfere with an existing contract. The big
guestion is whether it is permssible to include that in the
contract in the first place.

11:27: 42 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the Suprene Court woul d deci de whether the
adm nistration could set taxes in the contract. He noted that,
if the conmm ssioner negotiates a contract and the |egislature
approves or disapproves, it is basically voting on the
taxation in the contract. The bigger issue is whether the
conmm ssioner could nodify those taxes at a later date when
there would be no way to bring the contract back to the
| egi sl ature.

MR. BAILEY replied that he believes Senator Bunde is correct.

SENATOR BUNDE said that Section 3 appears to have two
applications, and the |egislature would have no authority over
changes made after its initial vote to approve or disapprove
t he contract.

11: 29: 56 AM

SENATOR BEN STEVENS interpreted the SGDA to say that the
| egi sl ature gave the commi ssioner the authority not to nodify
the taxes, but to negotiate a paynment structure in lieu of
taxes. That was allowed if the negotiated paynent in lieu
achieved the objectives of the SGDA, which were to bring the
resources to market and encourage devel opnent on the North
Slope. He does not agree with the concept of giving the
commi ssioner the authority to negotiate taxes and does not
think that is what the | egislature has done.

He said it seens obvious that, in terns of Article 9, Sections

1 and 4, as well as the contractual clause of the U S
Constitution, the question of whether the |egislature can give
that authority to the commissioner is one that wll be
chal lenged and wll have to be resolved in the courts. The

guestion now is whether the legislature wants to conmt to get
that question to the Suprenme Court.

11: 32:16 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -7- June 2, 2006



SENATOR HOFFMAN pointed out that, on page 3, lines 3-4, it

r eads “terms concerning nodifications of taxes on oil and
gas, including terns providing for periodic paynent in |ieu of
one or nore taxes”. So, if nodification of taxes was not

i ntended, maybe the first part of that sentence should be
del et ed.

11: 33: 20 AM

SENATOR DYSON concurred with Senat or Hof fman.

11: 34: 13 AM

MR BALDWN said the intent is to nmake it clear that the
contract can provide for paynents in lieu of oil and gas

taxes. The legislative history that was created in 1998 was
that the paynent in lieu authority only applied to taxes on
gas, even though the wording in Section 210 of the SGDA [on
page 4 of SB 2004] describes the types of taxes to which it
applies. He took responsibility for the artless use of the
phrase “nodifications of taxes”, because that was not the
adm nistration’s intent.

11: 35: 56 AM
SENATOR STEDVMAN said he did not see the |anguage that would
all ow the conm ssioner to go back in and nodify taxes.

CHAI R SEEKINS responded that he did not see it in the bil
either, although there may be terns included in the contract
that would allow a renegotiation. He asked what M. Baldw n
t hought .

MR. BALDWN replied that he is not aware of any provision in
the contract that would allow that.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Senators Bunde, Stevens, and Dyson to
provi de clarification.

SENATOR BUNDE said he thought M. Bailey, of legislative |egal
services, said it could occur. He asked M. Baldwin if it is
the admnistration’s intent that the conm ssioner would be
able to renegotiate taxes after the contract has been
aut hori zed by the | egislature.

MR. BALDWN said he is not aware of such intent.
SENATOR BUNDE sai d he understands that the | anguage was ai ned

at paynent in Jlieu of taxes; but the phrasing about
nodi fi cation may cause a broader interpretation than he could

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 8- June 2, 2006



support. He said he was glad to hear the adm nistration’s view
that the comm ssioner’s power does not extend beyond
ratification of the contract, and wondered if the |anguage
shoul d be rephrased to clarify that.

11:39: 40 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH j oi ned the comm ttee.

11: 39: 53 AM
SENATOR BEN STEVENS comented that, in the SGA, Section
43. 82. 010 Purpose, paragraph (2) is to:

(2) allow the fiscal ternms applicable to a qualified
sponsor or the nenbers of a qualified sponsor group, wth
respect to a qualified project, to be tailored to the
particular economc conditions of the project and to
establish those fiscal terns in advance with as nuch
certainty as the Constitution of the State of Al aska
al | ows,

He quoted from Section 210 Contract terms relating to paynent
in lieu of one or nore taxes:

“ for periodic paynment in lieu of one or nore of the
followng taxes that otherwise would be inposed by the
state or nmunicipality on the qualified sponsor or menber
of a qualified sponsor group as a consequence of
participating in an approved qualified project.”

And noted that the first types of taxes listed were “oil and
gas production taxes and oil surcharges under AS 43.55”. The
second types were “oil and gas exploration, production, and
pi peline transportation property taxes under AS 43.56", which
are the transportation and tariff charges. He said that a
literal interpretation of the |law shows that these taxes are
subj ect to negotiation in the paynent in lieu of taxes (PILT).

11:43: 31 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS agreed that 210 appears to be a restatenent of
43.82.200 and asked M. Baldwin if that is correct.

MR. BALDWN agreed that there is sone redundancy between
vari ous sections, but explained that the problem presented to
| awyers who read this is that |ines 8-10 on page 4 of SB 2004,
refer to a gas project. Then there is a string of taxes |isted
that are identified as oil and gas taxes. There was also quite
a colloquy in the 1998 House Special Conmittee on G| and Gas

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -9- June 2, 2006



about this. It is based on that history that |egal was asked
to amend 43.82. 200 and 210.

11: 45: 22 AM

BEN STEVENS agreed that the adjustnents in the oil taxes under
43.55 that are applied to the PILT apply only to the qualified
sponsor group. So, his interpretation is that this is tied to
t he gas taxes, because only those who have signed the sponsor
agreenent are subject to PILT.

MR. BALDWN said the adm nistration intends these anendnents
to counter the legislative history that was created in 1998.

11:46: 19 AM

SENATOR DYSON said that, if the nodifications to Section 3 are
only intended to give the comm ssioner authority to develop a
contract that will substitute PILT for oil tax paynents, there
is no reason not to clarify the language on lines 3-4 and
perhaps line 5. He suggested that it be nmade clear that it
does not authorize himto change the underlying tax structure.

11:47: 47 AM
SENATOR ELTON shared Senator Dyson’s concerns and suggested
that the original |anguage on lines 3 and 4 does what is

i ntended and that the new | anguage i s not needed.

11:49: 09 AM
SENATOR HOFFMAN asked why, if the |anguage in the SGDA Section
43.82.210 already includes provisions for both oil and gas

taxes and surcharges, does the adm nistration need to anend
t he | anguage in 200.

MR. BALDWN said that the admi nistration’ s purpose was to nake
the provisions parallel to the extent it is possible.

CHAI R SEEKINS said that the way he reads it, Section 200 says

“Contract developnment” and lists the terns that may be
included in the contract developnent. Section 210, contract
terms related to paynent in lieu of one or nore taxes,

basically relates back to 200, paragraph (1).

MR. BALDW N agr eed.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Baldwin if he is correct that this
section allows the comm ssioner to nodify “taxes on oil and

gas, including terns provided for periodic paynent of one or
nore taxes” according to the terns contained in 210, and

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 10- June 2, 2006



“terms related to credits for investnment, that is the subsidy
of the contract devel oped under this chapter,” which doesn't
have a statutory reference under the SCGDA

MR. BALDW N answer ed yes.

11:53: 12 AM

SENATOR ELTON asked |egislative counsel if there is still a
constitutional issue if they do not insert new |anguage on
page 3, lines 3-4, and they delete the |anguage on page 4,

lines 8-10 that ties the section to gas taxes.

MR. BAILEY asked if Senator Elton could clarify what he is
suggesting for the | anguage on page 4, lines 4-10.

SENATOR ELTON responded that he is not suggesting new
| anguage. He is referring to the anmendnent that strikes the
| anguage on lines 8-10. He asked whether striking that
elimnates the constitutional question that M. Bai | ey
testified to earlier.

MR. BALDWN replied that it does.

SENATOR ELTON reconmended that they keep the original |anguage
on page 3 and strike the | anguage on page 4, |ines 8-10.

11:57:19 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS said that they would start working on anmendnents
at 2:00 pm on Sunday, and asked M. Bailey to put together a
witten summary of the issues surroundi ng sovereign imunity.

SENATOR OLSON asked if M. Bailey is as confident of the
Suprenme Court ruling as adm nistrative counsel seens to be.

MR. BAILEY said he preferred not to specul ate.
11:58: 24 AM

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he wants to give the Suprene Court
the opportunity to nmake that deci sion.

SENATOR DYSON stressed that he really wants to get
clarification on the sovereignty issue and what t he
adm ni stration intended.

12: 01: 44 PM
SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if there have been other instances in
whi ch the state has given up its sovereign rights.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -11- June 2, 2006



12: 02: 03 PM

SENATOR BEN STEVENS j unped back to the discussion of the

| anguage inserted in 43.82.200 on page 3, lines 3-5 of the
bill. He interprets those lines as relating to Exhibit P.3 on
page 360 of the contract, which is a nethod to determ ne the
Pet rol eum Production Tax (PPT) PILT paynent. That exhibit
reads: “P.3 Net Production Value of PPT G| and PPT Gas
(replaces AS 43.55.160).” So, there is a nodification of the
tax code incorporated into Exhibit P.

Recessed 12:05:12 PMto 2:42:49 PM

CHAI R SEEKI NS brought the comm ttee back to order

2:43:12 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS rem nded the conmttee that the bill up for
consideration is SB 2004, and began the afternoon session with
di scussion of the provisions for economcally and revenue-
affected municipalities along the pipeline route.

2:44: 03 PM

STEVE THOWPSQN, Mayor, City of Fairbanks, and Chair, Muinici pal
Advi sory Goup (MAG, said that 13 different communities could
be affected during the construction and ranp-up of the gas
pi pel i ne.

2:44. 43 PM

SENATOR W LKEN referred Mayor Thonpson to pages 7-8 of version
A concerning economcally-affected and revenue-affected
muni ci palities. He said that he has sonme concern about the
definitions of these ternms and the differences in how the
muni ci palities mght be treated, and asked if MAG has had
di scussi ons about it.

MR. THOWPSON replied yes, economc inpacts are during ranp-up
and construction of the pipeline. Revenue-affected refers to
how the revenues would be handled in place of property tax
once the gas is flowwng. MAGs main concern has been with the

econom c inpacts during construction, for which $125 nillion
has been set aside. It has passed resolution 2006-01 to change
its term to continue wuntil all inpact dollars have been
distributed, or until construction is conplete. He noted that

there is no direction in legislation regarding how the funds
shoul d be distributed. MAG would |ike to act as an advisor to
the Comm ssi oner of Commer ce, Community and Econom c

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -12- June 2, 2006



Devel opnent in order to ensure that funds are distributed nost
effectively.

2:47: 35 PM

SENATOR WLKEN said that his concern is the construction
period, and asked if the $125 mllion is dedicated only to
econoni ¢ i npacts.

MAYOR THOWPSON replied that it is. MAG has been neeting for
two years and has passed nunerous resolutions to address their
concerns.

SENATOR W LKEN asked WMayor Thonpson if he was aware that,
under principal nunber one in the SGDA 43.82.510, revenue-
af fected muni ci palities are gi ven a priority over
econom cal |l y-affected nunicipalities.

MR. THOWPSON said that the advisory group’ s understanding is
that the inpact funds are for the construction period and
ranp-up to construction only.

2:49: 25 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said that he would research it further. His
understanding is that the econom cally-affected nmunicipalities
fall away after first gas; then the revenue-affected
nmuni ci palities are addressed. He said he would ask soneone in
the admnistration to look at the affected nmunicipalities and
show the commttee first-gas inpact and 10 years after. He is
concerned that this mght set up an inbalance on the North
Slope with regard to realizing the benefit of those assets. He
asked M. Thonpson how nuch work they’ ve done on this issue.

2:51:11 PM

MR. THOWPSON replied that resolution 2006-01 was submitted on
Friday, requesting that the municipal advisory group be
extended and that MAG be allowed to advise the comm ssioner of
commerce when he reviews grants to communities affected by
construction. MAG also passed four resolutions regarding

addi tional concerns including education funding, which wll be
negatively inpacted if property values are not excluded from
the annual true and full value determnation of the | ocal

educati on fundi ng.

2:52: 23 PM
SENATOR WLKEN said the commttee received M. Thonpson's
email and that his office will work on the educational issue.

He noted that Valdez and North Slope boroughs, those that

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 13- June 2, 2006



benefit by the 45 percent rule, are the ones nost inpacted by
t he throughput cal culation rather than a true and full val ue.

2:53:17 PM
MR. THOMPSON said that he hoped the conmttee would take the
2006-01 resolution into consideration.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Thonpson if he had a copy of the bil
on hand.

MR. THOVPSON replied no.

CHAI R SEEKINS read from SB 2004 version A, page 9, subsection
(e):

The conm ssi oner of comrerce, conmunity, and econom c

devel opnment, in consultation with the rel evant nuni ci pal
advi sory group established under AS 43.82.510, shall use
noney appropriated to the Al aska Natural Gas Pipeline
Construction Inpact Fund to nmake grants to nunicipalities,
and to nonprofit organizations serving the unorganized
borough, for inpacts on transportation, infrastructure, |aw
enf orcenent, energency services, health and human servi ces,
education, |abor force, popul ation, wages, and subsi stence,
and for socio-cultural inpacts, brought about by the
construction of the gas pipeline.

2:54.26 PM

MR. THOWPSON said that is the exact |anguage submtted by the
advisory board and he appreciates the fact that it was
i ncluded so pronptly. He rem nded Chair Seekins that MAG al so
submtted |anguage to extend the existence of the advisory
group and allow them to advise the conm ssioner on grant
appl i cations.

2:55:14 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS said that the next sentence nay address that,
and continued readi ng frompage 9 subparagraph (e):

In determning whether an expenditure or proposed
expenditure by a nunicipality or non-profit organization
is eligible for a grant under this subsection, and in
all ocating available noney anobng grant proposals, the
conmi ssioner shall consider the recommendations of the
rel evant nunicipal advisory group established under AS
43.82.510 and whether the proposed expenditure neets the
pur poses of this section.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -14- June 2, 2006



He asked if this sentence gave M. Thonpson sone confidence in
the total picture.

MR THOWSON replied yes. He noted that the nonprofit
referenced would be the Tanana Chiefs’ Conference that 1is
representing the unincorporated areas fromthe North Slope to
t he Canadi an border.

CHAI R SEEKI NS t hanked M. Thonpson for that identification

2:56:17 PM

SENATOR ELTON questioned the definition of non-profit in this
context. He said that the wording seened to be broad enough to
al l ow uni ntended entities to qualify for inpact funds.

MR. THOMPSON said that Steve Porter is the person to talk to
about that.

2:56: 57 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS added that he had sonme questions on the
“uni ncor porated borough” |anguage with regard to the list of
i npacts on page 9, lines 6-8. He questioned whether it would
al wvays be Tanana Chiefs that would handle transportation
infrastructure, for exanple.

MR. THOWPSON agreed that the |anguage is pretty broad, which
is one of the reasons he would like MAG to be involved wth
the Departnent of Comerce in the selection process before
requests go to the |legislature.

2:58:10 PM

MR, THOWSON reiterated that MAG has sent a nunber of
resolutions to the legislators and asked that the committee
consider them He thanked the legislators for their efforts to
protect the communities and citizens of Al aska.

2:58:59 PM

SENATOR W LKEN asked for M. Thonpson’s understanding of the
process by which inpact requests would be nmde, considered,
certified, and awarded. For exanple, if a new pipe-coating
yard in Fairbanks nmade it necessary to add a new fire station,
how woul d it get the inpact noney to build that.

MR. THOWPSON sai d that no process has been established yet.

3:00: 02 PM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -15- June 2, 2006



SENATOR OLSON asked M. Thonpson whether the Tanana Chiefs
woul d represent the North Sl ope Borough comruniti es.

3:00: 25 PM
VR. THOMPSON said no. Tanana Chiefs only represents
uni ncorporated entities.

3:00: 57 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked whether this would be linmted to Al askan
communities, or would extend into Canada.

MR. THOWPSON said inmpact funds would only be granted to
Al askan conmmuniti es.

3:01:38 PM

CHAI R SEEKI NS t hanked M. Thonpson for his input and asked the
commttee if they had questions for Kevin Ritchie from Al aska
Muni ci pal League (AM.).

SENATOR WLKEN directed M. Baldwn s attention to page 9,
subsection (e), which addresses the awarding of grants. He
said he would like this process to be conducted in a public
forum He also asked if the bill mght include who nakes the
decisions and by what criteria they determne which
conmuni ties are consi dered i npact ed.

3:04: 00 PM

MR. BALDWN answered that the adm nistration’s approach is to
do this in regulation. If the legislature desires to nake it
nore specific, they could try to do it in statute; but it is a
matter of tinme and effort.

SENATOR W LKEN specul ated that, if Fairbanks puts in a request
for inmpact funds to build a new fire station, it wll go to
sonmeone who will qualify it, to soneone else who will certify
it, and to soneone else for funding. Al of those things nust
be done in a public forum

MR. BALDW N responded that Senator WIlken is really talking
nore in terns of process than in defining what an inpact is.

SENATOR W LKEN said that is his next question; but he wants to
be sure that, whatever is done, it is done in public.

SENATOR WLKEN directed M. Baldwin s attention to page 8,
line 24, regarding direct and severe inpacts. He said he has a

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 16- June 2, 2006



definition of inpact that he would like included in the bil
and asked who he should work with on that anmendnent.

MR. BALDWN said to give it to himand his office would help
Senator Wlken to draft it.

SENATOR W LKEN noved to page 7 beginning on line 31, through
page 9. He said he understands that the econom cally-inpacted
conmmunities have $125 nillion available that goes away at
first gas; then the revenue-inpacted comunities are
addressed. He said it appears that 11 entities would be
affected by the definition and asked if anyone has run the
pro-formas, given the throughputs on which the PILT will now
be based.

MR BALDW N said he would have to check

3:07:47 PM

SENATOR W LKEN asked whether he should be concerned about the
| anguage in 43.82.510 in the stranded gas anmendnent, principal
(1), wth regard to the revenue-affected nunicipalities
trunmpi ng the econom cally-affected nunicipalities.

3:08: 05 PM

MR. BALDWN responded that a nenp was just delivered to
Senator W/ ken that addresses that issue. The criteria that
are listed in 020(b) are directory, not nandatory and, when
referring to economi cal | y-af fected muni ci palities, this
doesn’t seem to be in the proper context, so the priority
woul d not apply.

3:09: 00 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said he is not concerned about economn c inpacts
here, but about the revenue-inpacted communities. He wants to
know who defines them and how the noney flows all the way from
the North Slope to the Canadi an border. He wants to be sure
the state takes the time to develop an infrastructure that
will provide benefits statewi de and not just in certain areas.

3:10: 15 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked if aid to revenue-affected nunicipalities
woul d al so be shut down when the $125 nillion in inpact funds
i S gone.

MR. BALDWN answered that there will be a continuing PILT that
will be paid under the agreenent.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -17- June 2, 2006



SENATOR CGREEN asked if they are separate.
MR. BALDW N confirned that they are.

SENATOR WAGONER said that is part of the contract, and
paynments continue in |ieu of taxes at the nunicipal |evel.

MR. BALDW N confirnmed that Senator Wagoner is correct.

3:10: 58 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked if, when the $125 mllion is gone, the
econoni cal l y-i npacted definition is noot.

MR BALDW N answered that he understands that to be true.

3:11: 20 PM

SENATOR STEDMVAN said he assunes that when they talk about
spreadi ng the inpact benefits across Al aska, that neans al ong
the gas pipeline and not broadly across the state. He asked if
that is correct.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that is his understanding, but it would
help to have a clear definition of “inpact”.

3:12:59 PM
SENATOR W LKEN said that a profit stream would flow out of the
gas pipeline into a “bucket”; but before it gets there, areas

across the state will be nmaking clains on it. The state has to
be sure the clains are valid, because they reduce the anount
avai l able to benefit the state as a whol e.

3:14:37 PM
MR. THOMPSON interjected that the revenue-affected conmunities
are only those with a property-taxing authority. Once the line
is conplete and gas is flowing, they will not be able to
collect a property tax, so it has to be paid with a PILT from
t he state.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked for confirmation that it is not intended
to go to unincorporated communities that do not |evy taxes
under state | aw.

MR. THOVWPSON said that is correct.
3:15: 53 PM

SENATOR HOFFMAN said this mght also be interpreted to nean
that the unorganized areas along the corridor would remain

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 18- June 2, 2006



unorgani zed for 45 years and could not collect PILT during
that tine.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that is not his wunderstanding. If a
community falls into the definition of a revenue-affected
muni cipality in the future, it could apply for PILT through
the comm ssioner. For exanple, if the Delta Borough cones into
exi stence after this is executed, it would qualify.

3:16: 58 PM
SENATOR HOFFMAN said he thinks it was addressed during the
hearings at Centennial Hall, and that a new borough woul d not

be able to assess property taxes or be eligible for PILT
because of the |ockdown; so there would be no reason to form
He said he would like to get clarification on this issue.

3:17: 21 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked for confirmation that the revenue-
i npacted definition exists fromfirst gas to | ast gas.

MR. BALDW N answered that the PILT is payable imediately from
the effective date.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if revenue-inpacted comunities stop at
first gas or |ast gas.

MR. BALDW N replied that they stop at |ast gas.

SENATOR W LKEN said that, in that case, the state is peeling
off .001 and putting it into a bucket for the unorganized
areas. If a new borough forms, it can take part of that noney
and attach itself to the revenue stream so there is an
incentive to becone a borough, to tap into the funding that
conmes out of the throughput.

3:18: 28 PM

MR. BALDWN said that there are additional factors built into
the allocation fornulas to allow for the creation of new
muni ci palities.

3:19: 20 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked for confirmation that they would not be
| ocked out forever.

MR. BALDW N replied that is correct.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if that is in the contract.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -19- June 2, 2006



MR. BALDW N answer ed yes.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if M. Baldwin would point that out to
hi m

MR. BALDW N said he would do so after the neeting.

CHAIR SEEKINS thanked Senator Hoffrman for bringing the
guestion up.

3:19: 45 PM
SENATOR ELTON referred back to section 3 on page 3, and asked
for the rationale behind the change on line 25 from the *best
interest of the state”, to the “long-term fiscal interest of
the state”.

3:21: 04 PM

MR. BALDW N answered that the adm nistration provided a nmeno,
addressed to the <chair of the commttee, explaining the
rational e behind that change.

SENATOR ELTON said he would wait for the neno.

At ease from 3:21:52 PMto 3:29:12 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that copies of the neno had been
distributed. He then referred to page 3, paragraph 5 of the
bill.

JOSEPH DONCHUE, Preston Gates & Ellis, explained that the
reasoni ng behind the change to 7(b) on page 3, line 25, was to
ensure that the court considers the comm ssioner’s proposed
contract terns and prelimnary and final findings under the
sane standard.

3:32: 03 PM

MR. DONOHUE went on to say that the term “best interests” has
been litigated in the context of the Departnent of Natural
Resource findings. There is a body of law that says it refers
back to Article 8 of the constitution and neans that the
decision of the conm ssioner of natural resources has to be
made to the maxi mum benefit of the people and the best public
interest. So, there is little difference between the two
standards. This change is designed to mnimze potential
l[itigation issues and is, in short, a consistency edit within
t he SCGDA.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 20- June 2, 2006



3:33:28 PM

SENATOR ELTON said it seens that, if the goal is to mnimze
potential Ilitigation, noving from a standard that has been
litigated and has sonme basis in case |law, to one that has not,
m ght increase the potential for lengthy litigation.

3:34:12 PM

MR. DONCHUE said that there is a body of |law regarding the
best interests standard that tells the Suprene Court the
constitutional provisions to look at, but it is a very
anor phous test. The commi ssioner has already gone through
el aborate effort to put forward the prelimnary fisca
interest findings using the standard that pervades the SGDA,
which is whether the contract is in the long-term fiscal
interest of the state.

3:35:15 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said the findings of long-term fiscal interest
al ready occur in the SGDA and are the sane as those that could
be chal | enged under 602 of the Appellate Procedures. So, it is
a matter of consistency as to what the comm ssioner nmnust
provide in his findings.

VR. DONOHUE agr eed.

3:36: 24 PM
SENATOR ELTON referred to an earlier discussion of Section 4,
subsection (b), page 3, line 27, and noted that this seens to

provide a producer the opportunity to “shop around” for
anot her court of jurisdiction that will enforce an arbitration
award. He asked if +the state of Alaska also has that
opportunity.

3:37:39 PM
MR. DONOHUE replied that, under Article 26, the rights to
enforce arbitration awards are reciprocal.

SENATOR ELTON asked if he neans that any party could do it.

MR. DONOHUE answered yes; any party can proceed to another
state that has jurisdiction over the state or over the
producing entity involved in the dispute.

3:38:12 PM

SENATOR DYSON referred to page 3, line 31, and asked if it
woul d be possible to clarify what is neant by “the state”.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -21- June 2, 2006



3:40: 15 PM

MR. DONOHUE answered that, given the substantial assets the
producing entities have in Alaska, it is unlikely that the
state would shop in other jurisdictions to enforce an
arbitration award, although the state could do that under the
contract. If it could not confirm its award wthin its
jurisdiction, it could seek to have the arbitration award
entered in other states where the entity that owes the award
has assets.

3:41:26 PM

SENATOR DYSON said that he was not thinking of the renmedy in
terms of noney, but enforcenent of an arbitrator’s decision to
press for action.

MR. DONOHUE responded that what the waiver of sovereign
immunity is intended to achieve, is to put the state on equa
footing with the producers in the context of solving
[itigation problens and enforcing judgnents.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Donohue if the state would have to
wai ve sovereign inmunity to collect against the producers.

MR. DONOHUE said no. He explained that the reason the contract
includes a waiver of sovereign imunity is that the state’s
commercial partners fear, if they are left with only state
remedies to enforce an arbitration award, the renedies for
collection on a judgnent against the state are limted. The
state and public corporation assets are exenpt from execution
and attachnment, and the only way a private party can coll ect
against the state in Alaska is to take the case to the
| egi slature and ask for the nobney. Basically, the conpanies
feel on an unequal footing for litigation wthin the state.

3:44: 20 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked why they would feel the need to go after
us in another state’ s court.

MR. DONCHUE said the primary reason would be if the judgnent
were too large to be recouped under the waterfall provisions
of Article 22, and the legislature refused to appropriate
funds to cover it. At that point, the conpanies could seek
enforcement against state assets in other parts of the
country.

3:45: 06 PM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -22- June 2, 2006



SENATOR DYSON asked M. Donohue to explain the waterfal
provi sions of Article 22.

MR. DONOHUE said that all of the reciprocal obligations under
the contract are described in Article 22. These are cal cul ated
on a nonthly basis and then netted out. Hopefully, nobst of the
time the conpanies will owe the state significant anounts of
noney at the end of the waterfall. The conpanies are allowed
to recoup arbitration awards through this process, so it would
be an unusual circunstance that could not be covered by the
recoupnent provisions. It wuld also be very unusual for the
| egislature not to appropriate the funds to cover a judgment.
| f that happened however, they would be entitled to pursue
remedy in another state.

3:46: 53 PM
SENATOR DYSON said they could cone to our state court.

MR. DONOHUE explained that the dispute would be settled
through private arbitration and the conpani es woul d be granted
an award. If the state continued to object and did not pay
through the accounting process, they would seek to have the
judgnment entered in our state court first. The renedy to
enforce a judgnent against the state of Al aska inside the
state is to cone to the state legislature and ask for an
appropriation. So, if the conpanies are not treated fairly at
the time they present an appropriation request to the state
| egislature, they can go after the state’s assets in other
jurisdictions.

3:48: 21 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked if, on line 31, “the state” neans the
state of Al aska.

MR. DONOHUE said yes, that is conmon wording and refers to the
state of Al aska.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there are any states that do not have
jurisdiction over Al aska.

MR. DONCHUE answered that it is based on whether Al aska has
any assets in the state.

SENATOR DYSON restated that having assets in another state is
what woul d give that state’s court jurisdiction over Al aska.

MR. DONOHUE said, in a general sense, yes.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 23- June 2, 2006



3:49: 30 PM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked what recourse the state would have agai nst
a conpany that refuses to pay an award.

3:50:11 PM

MR. DONCHUE answered that the contract is anbiguous on that.
One reading is that the state would enter the award in state
court and seek enforcenment against the conpany. Another
reading is that the state could pursue direct action to
collect it. He suggested that the committee speak to Bob
Loeffler and the negotiating teamto get a clearer answer.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, if the producers can net out their
awards and the state has to go through nornmal collection
procedures, they are not on equal footing.

MR. DONOHUE said that, under waterfall, the state could net
out its obligations too. The ultimte issue is, what if
waterfall isn't sufficient to satisfy the obligation.

3:51:48 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked whether other states have given up their
sovereign imunity in simlar circunstances.

MR. DONOHUE said he is unaware of any other states that have
consciously waived sovereign immunity when doing business in
another state, but there is a U S. Suprene Court precedent on
the question that goes back to the 19'" century, when the state
of Ceorgia ran a railroad through Georgia and Tennessee and
had a railroad asset in Tallahassee. The city wanted to
condemm it, but Georgia said that the asset was protected by
its sovereign immunity. The Suprenme Court ruled that the state
has no sovereign imunity when doing business in another
state; it is just another entity.

3:53: 08 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked if there were any sovereignty issues
surroundi ng TAPS.

MR. DONOHUE coul d not recall any.
SENATOR OLSON said that his concern about trying to collect
from the conpanies is illustrated by what has happened wth

t he Exxon Val dez issue. There has been a judgnent | angui shing
for years w thout being paid.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 24- June 2, 2006



3:53:44 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said that, as he understands it, the LLC is
contenplating incorporation in Delaware. He asked if this
di scussion has anything to do with the fact that it would be
incorporated in a state other than Al aska.

MR. DONOHUE answered that the rules for the fiscal contract
and disputes under the fiscal contract would be resolved in
accordance with Alaska law. The LLC agreenent that is being
negotiated will be incorporated under Delaware Law and wl|
include provisions for alternative dispute resolution. He
believed that Delaware |aw would apply. The reason for using
Del aware rather than Alaska law is that Del aware has decades
of case law interpreting its corporate and LLC codes, so many
states use Delaware |law to govern commercial agreenents. In
the context of a dispute, one is nore likely to be able to
predi ct outconmes and resolve themreadily.

3:55:26 PM

CHAI R SEEKINS said that, according to the 2006 State Liability
Systens Ranki ng Study conducted for the U S. Chanber institute
for legal reform Delaware is the nunber one state for having
and enforcing venue requirenents, overall treatnent of torte
and contract litigation, treatnment of <class action suits,
t r eat ment of punitive damages, tinmeliness of sunmary
judgnments, and so on. It appears that if a corporation wants
speedy treatnent, it goes to Del aware.

3:56:17 PM
SENATOR ELTON said that he recalls being told during the
hearings at Centennial hall, that the arbitrator is precluded

from awardi ng punitive damages for losses. If that is correct,
he wonders under what circunstances there would be a huge
award that would pronpt a party to seek renedy in another
st at e.

MR. DONOHUE replied that Senator Elton is correct. The fiscal
contract has provisions limting the types of damages that the
parties can pursue agai nst each other. He admtted that he is
less famliar with the LLC agreenment under negotiation, but he
believes it has simlar, fairly standard limtations. He could
not think of any exanple of a huge award agai nst the state.

3:57:40 PM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Donohue if there is a situs agreenent
as to where disputes will be tried.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 25- June 2, 2006



MR. DONOHUE answered that Exhibit (C discusses where the
tribunal would sit. He believes it is by nutual agreenent of
parties first, and then there is a default situs.

CHAI R SEEKINS preferred that it be sited in Al aska.

3:58:41 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked that the adm nistration provide an exanple
to denonstrate the need for this provision.

MR. DONOHUE said that he would try to provide an exanpl e.

3:59:49 PM

SENATOR W LKEN asked M. Donohue to | ook at page 5, lines 18-
20. This section of the legislation expands the powers of the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and, with agreenent of
the Departnment of Revenue (DOR), expands the comm ssioner’s
power to enter into shipping commtnments and |ong-term gas
mar keti ng agreenents. But on |lines 18-20, the sentence really
seens to be divided into tw. The first section that stops
with “and” on line 19, has to do with changing |ease and unit
expenses “for separation, cleaning, dehydration, gathering,
and sal twat er disposal”, which neans a gas treatnment plant. He
asked if the second part, “and preparation for transportation
on or off the | ease”, speaks to the gas processing facility.

MR. DONCHUE answered yes; it deals with upstream field costs
that the state is agreeing to assune and whatever processes
are used to deal with inpurities and nmake the gas pipeline
quality. He referred the commttee to question nunber three in
the letter from Kevin Jardell to The Honorable Jay Ranras,
dated June 2, 2006

4. 02: 45 PM
SENATOR WLKEN said that the next tine the legislature
confirme a commssioner of DNR or DOR it had better be
awfully sure it knows what kind of person it is confirmng,
because those are going to be very inportant people in state
gover nnent .

4:03: 21 PM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if these expenses would be deducted from
what the state receives if it takes its gas in cash rather
than in kind.

MR. DONOHUE answered no. The state has taken these expenses on
as part of the process of becomng a full conmercial partner

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 26- June 2, 2006



in the project, and they would not otherwi se be authorized
under the | eases and exi sting agreenents.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if they reduce the value of the gas versus
taking it in cash.

4:04:13 PM

MR. DONOHUE said that sounds |like a question for Pedro [Van
Meurs]. He thinks that the state, by taking its gas in kind,
is likely to nake as nuch or nore than it would by taking it
in cash.

4:04:55 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS said that public hearings are scheduled for
Saturday and the conmittee will start with anendnents to the

bill on Sunday.

SENATOR BUNDE noted that he gave Chair Seekins’ staff a couple
of amendnents and asked whether they should be incorporated
into a CS, or be introduced as anendnents.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he would like to | ook at each anmendnent to
see what could be incorporated into a CS, then work with the
anmendnents and perhaps cone up with a second CS

SB 2003- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE CORPCRATI ON

SENATOR BUNDE referred to page 6, line 29 of Section 41.42.045
(b), “the governor shall pronptly nake an appointnent”, and
asked whether the term“pronptly” should be further defined.

4:07: 30 PM

CHAI R SEEKINS said that is a point well taken. He rem nded the
commttee that the question of whether appointnents to the
board would require legislative confirmation has not been
resol ved

SENATOR BUNDE advi sed that Tam Cooke provided a |egal opinion
that legislative confirmation is unlikely to be enforceable or
al | owed.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for a copy of that opinion.

SENATOR BUNDE said that it is being distributed.

CHAIR SEEKINS comrented that Senator G een said, when the
primary function of a board is fiduciary, it is not subject to

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -27- June 2, 2006



confirmation by the legislature. The |egislature can stipulate
t hat board nenbers cannot be di sm ssed except for cause.

4:09: 25 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that the other unresolved question having
to do with public nenbers of the board is the residency
requirenent.

SENATOR BUNDE interjected that he has submtted an anmendnent
that requires nost of themto be Al askans. He al so noted that
commttee nenbers should now have a copy of the nmeno from Tam
Cooke before them and read the |ast sentence from that neno:
“The Board of Directors of the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline
Corporation do not fall wthin the types of boards in which
confirmation is required.”

4:10: 20 PM

CHAI R SEEKI NS thanked Senator Bunde. He then brought up the
subj ect of when board neetings should be held and whether the
meet i ngs shoul d be public.

4:10: 50 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he is nore confortable wth the
Per manent Fund Corporation nodel than that outlined in the
bill. Al of its nmeetings are public and, if the board needs
to address mtters that are confidential, it goes into
executive session.

SENATOR GREEN asked if there is or should be a provision for
energencies in which a decision nust be nmade post-haste.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he thinks that would be handl ed based on
noti ce, and asked if anyone had an opinion on it.

4:11:47 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked how the Alaska railroad board handles
neeti ngs, and whether that would be a good nodel to follow

MR. DONOHUE asked Chair Seekins to repeat the question.

CHAI R SEEKINS explained that the discussion is about the
public neeting process and how it should be handl ed.

MR. DONOHUE replied that the plan was to ensure that at |east
one of four neetings would be public, although that woul d not
preclude making all of them public. The prinmary concern of DOR
is that the neetings remain exenpt fromthe Open Meetings Act,

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 28- June 2, 2006



because it puts constraints on how quickly the board could
nmeet, creates litigation points for |lack of notice and subject
matter of executive sessions. If AK Pipe is to operate on an
equal footing as a commercial entity with the other nenbers of
the LLC, freedomfromthe Open Meetings Act is necessary.

4:14: 33 PM
SENATOR W LKEN restated his concern about allowi ng votes on
fiscal issues via tel econference.

SENATOR ELTON said that M. Porter stopped by his office to
di scuss the issue of public neetings. He understood the nodel
that Chair Seekins suggested and had no objection to it, and
may be working on sone | anguage now.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Senator W/ ken whether all nenbers of the
board nust be present, or if a certain nunber of nenbers could
attend via tel econference.

SENATOR WLKEN said he prefers that all nenbers nust be
present .

SENATOR BUNDE said that, on page 6, line 8, where it states
that board nenbers would be paid for “each day or portion of a
day spent at a neeting of the board,” he would like the
portion required to earn the honorarium to be nore clearly
defined. He said he would prepare an anendnent for the
comm ttee’s consideration.

4:16: 14 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, when he was on the permanent fund
board of trustees, he sonetines spent half a day each way
traveling to a neeting and ended up not neeting at all. He
asked Senator Bunde if he would want to put nmenbers of this
board in the position of doing that w thout conpensati on.

SENATOR BUNDE said he would like to discuss it.

4:16: 59 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS directed M. Donohue’s attention to page 9,
paragraph (8) starting on line 3, and asked whether the board
of directors could divest the state of Alaska of it’'s
ownership interest in the project sinply by a vote.

MR. DONOHUE replied that there are provisions that would

restrict the transfer of assets as long as the corporation has
out standi ng obligations. Since this is a public organization

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 29- June 2, 2006



its duty is to acquire and maintain an ownership interest over
the life of the project. The provision on page 9 is focused on
allowng the board to use the ownership interest as an asset
to secure debt and so on.

4:19: 14 PM

MR. DONOHUE said that he does not think the admnistration
woul d have any objection to anending the |anguage to make it
clear that the board cannot transfer the entire asset.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked for questions on indemification and
confidentiality agreenents, which are di scussed on page 10.

4:20: 01 PM

He went on to page 11, line 9, dealing with police powers of
the state, and asked M. Donohue to explain what those powers
are.

4:20:12 PM

MR. DONOHUE answered that the police powers of the state refer
to its sovereign authority to maintain the health and security
of the state, to regulate crimnal matters, and conmerci al
activity within the state.

CHAIR SEEKINS went on to page 21, line 14, and asked if the
insertion of the word “reasonably” before “required” would
address sone of the concerns the commttee has di scussed.

4:21:43 PM

MR. DONOHUE said that is a question for M. Porter. He said
that this provision has been a hot issue with producers. They
are unconfortable with the adm nistration’ s approach and woul d
prefer a conplete exenption from the public records act. They
are insisting on a confidentiality agreenent as part of the
LLC agreenent.

4:22:34 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that he knows there is a confidentiality
agreenent in the SGDA that delineates those things that nust
be confidential, and he wonders why that was not done in this
bill.

MR. DONOHUE said that the admnistration did |ook to the SGDA
provi sions as a nodel .

4:23:20 PM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 30- June 2, 2006



CHAI R SEEKINS said that what concerns himis the inclusion of
a bl anket statenent covering “anything that is required to be
kept confidential under an agreenent with an owner entity”. He
asked if that neans the state has to agree to keep it
confidential first, or that there is a vote to determne
whether it is confidential.

MR. DONOHUE said that, under the LLC agreenent, there is a
standard definition of what is confidenti al and how
information would be shared anpbng the parties. He reiterated
that the producers are concerned about taking a public
corporation into their partnership, which has not been done
bef or e.

He said that he has no legal problem with adding the word
“reasonably”, but that this is a policy issue that should be
addressed by M. Porter.

4:25: 03 PM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked when the legislature would see the LLC
agreement .

MR. DONOHUE said that he does not have an answer to that
guestion, but that every effort is being nade to conplete
negoti ati ons as qui ckly as possible.

4:25:22 PM

SENATOR GREEN commented that, just because there is a
government entity in partnership with a private entity, does
not nmean that the same public information standards should be
i nposed on the private entity as are required of the state.

MR. DONOHUE assured her that the adm nistration is not trying
to bring the nmenbers of the LLC or the LLC itself within the
Freedom of Information Act.

SENATOR GREEN said that she was referring to the call for
information that normally, under a governnent entity, would
not be kept confidential.

MR. DONOHUE replied that part of the problem m ght be that the
current public records act is sonewhat vague in regard to the
types of proprietary information that would be protected if
chal l enged. Part of rationale for the expanded list in the
bill, is to clarify the nature of the business information
that could be protected by Al aska Pipe Corporation in the
context of this conmmercial venture.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 31- June 2, 2006



4:27:32 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS referred M. Donohue to page 27, section 12 of
the bill, and asked him to explain what 45.45.900 actually
acconpl i shes.

MR. DONOHUE answered that this provision is in current |aw and
provides that, in the context of a construction contract in
Al aska, a person cannot agree to indemify another contractor
for their sole negligence or m sconduct. So, section 12 anends
that rule by providing for the exception that is added wth
section 13.

He explained that the standard nechanism for a joint venture
between oil and gas entities is to hire an affiliated operator
to manage the construction and operate the project at no
profit; so that operator would not be willing to accept any
risk. The risk would be absorbed by the LLC, which would
indermify the operator against its own negligence or
m sconduct by its enployees, and the cost would be spread
anong the LLC nenbers according to their nenbership interest.
The nmenbers can insure against it on an individual basis or
self-insure, which is what the oil conpanies do. The operator
as an affiliate of one of the nenbers of the LLC, has every
incentive to avoid negligence and m sconduct; but in a project
as big as this, such things do occur.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if this indemification flows only to the
operating entity and is not a cross-indemification of the
owners of the project.

4:32:53 PM

MR. DONOHUE answered that this provision deals with two types
of indemification: the operator, and the nenbers of the LLC
These are contractual agreenents that will be narrowy drafted
to deal wth <certain kinds of msconduct by |owleve
enpl oyees that the policy makers of each of the partners
cannot control.

He said there are also provisions that allow the operator to
hire experts to assist in construction or permtting and ot her
special areas. The entities providing the consulting service
to the operator would be indemified in the sanme way. Some
conpanies nmay also loan enployees to the operator during
certain phases of the project, and these enployees too would
be i ndemi fi ed.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 32- June 2, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the actions of soneone hired
tenporarily by or |loaned to the operator do not flow back to
their original enployer, but are indemified as if he were a
regul ar enpl oyee of the operator.

4:34:59 PM

MR. DONOHUE answered vyes; the indemification covers any
enployee that is loaned to the operator, the entity that
| oaned the enployee, and any entity providing consulting
services to the operator. He stressed the fact that these are
entities affiliated with nenbers of the LLC, and not just any
consultant to the operator.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether, if the negligence of an enpl oyee
of the state of Al aska caused damages, the cost of the damages
woul d be shared on an equal basis between all of the nenbers
of the LLC

MR. DONOHUE answered yes, as long as the enployee was working
for the operator.

4:35:53 PM
SENATOR CGREEN asked if M. Donohue said that the operator
woul d not have to pay at all.

MR. DONCHUE responded that the producers and the state would
share the 100 percent ownership interest. The operator would
be a separate entity affiliated with one of the owner
entities, but would not have ownership in the LLC

SENATOR GREEN asked if the four owners would share 100 percent
of the liability.

MR. DONOHUE answered yes; it would be shared in proportion to
their ownership interest.

4:37:11 PM

SENATOR BUNDE referred to page 5, paragraph (3)(A), which
lists specific things that would disqualify a person for
nmenbership on the board and noted that, although it excludes
enpl oyees of the state, it does not exclude executives or
enpl oyees of the major oil conpanies. He asked why that is not
addr essed.

CHAIR SEEKINS also asked why state enployees, but not oil
conpany enpl oyees, are excluded from serving on the board.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 33- June 2, 2006



MR. DONCHUE responded that he could not understand why a
governor would appoint an oil conpany enployee to the board.
He said the desire is to get experienced people on the board,
whi ch m ght nmean forner oil conpany enpl oyees, who woul d then
be subject to the conflict of interest clause.

4:38:37 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said that the conflict of interest section says
board nenbers and applicants to the board have to declare a
conflict, but does not say it precludes themfrom serving.

SENATOR GREEN asked where the conflict of interest section is
| ocated, and then found it on page 7.

4:39:20 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked if there is anything that precludes a
future legislature fromtweaki ng any of these provisions.

MR. DONOHUE replied that there is nothing in the fiscal
contract, but there are provisions in the LLC called nenber
default provisions, that would be triggered by anendnents to
this statute in the future. These are designed particularly to
address producers’ concerns about confidentiality and the
makeup of the board. They include a dispute resolution
process, and a specific provision on page 11, section 22, that
specifies the powers of the corporation in the event of
changes that adversely affect its ability to perform its
obl i gations under the contract.

4:41: 46 PM
SENATOR ELTON suggested that it mght be helpful for the
Adm nistration to identify elenments in the bill that the

| egislature will be prevented fromchanging in the future.

MR. DONCHUE advised that these issues are under discussion.
The triggering nechanisnms and the penalties have not been
resolved; so he does not think the admnistration can give
nore specific exanples at this tine.

SENATOR ELTON likened this to putting the cart before the
horse, and said that he is unconfortable not knowing if the
| egi slature will have the power to change this in the future.

4:43: 58 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS comrented that it is hard to predict; but the
LLC will have to conply with the decisions the |egislature
makes now.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 34- June 2, 2006



SENATOR ELTON agreed, and I|ikened it to the way the
legislature is dealing with anmendnents to the SGDA that
inplicate the kind of contract that can conme before the
| egislature for a vote. In this situation however, the
| egi sl ature does not have the ability to vote on the LLC

CHAIR SEEKINS said that the legislature would provide the
framework within which the LLC can operate.

4:45:19 PM
MR. DONCHUE said that the legislature would not be precluded
from changing the law in these areas; but there could be
limted penalties on the Alaska nenber within the LLC that
would affect wvoting rights and access to confidential
i nformation.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he could not inmagine that information
normal |y available to shareholders of a corporation would be
wi thheld from the citizens of the State. He said he thinks
the commttee is trying to get at what information it is not
necessary to share with sharehol ders of a corporation, because
the people of the state are really acting as shareholders in
the LLC. He asked M. Donohue if the state is bound by the
agr eenent .

MR. DONOHUE said that changes could be nade but mght be
subject to penalties, which are limted as described in this
power. [page 11, paragraph (22)]

4. 48: 24 PM
SENATOR ELTON said he woul d describe a couple of exanples, and
then go back to the situation the commttee finds itself in

with the contract. By passing this bill, the legislature wll
be nmaki ng decisions on indemification in sections 12 and 13.
It will be determ ning how many board nenbers there should be

and where they conme from Those are two exanpl es of decisions
that a future legislature may want to “tweak”. The |egislature
is adopting the SGDA anendnents after having seen the
contract, to accommpdate the contract. The other way to do
this is to wait and adopt | egislation authorizing Pipeco after
seeing what the LLC | ooks |ike.

4:49: 54 PM

MR. DONCHUE  remar ked t hat he under st ands t hat t he
adm nistration intends to bring the LLC to the |egislature for
review in conjunction with the Al aska Pipe |egislation.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 35- June 2, 2006



4:50: 07 PM

SENATOR WLKEN said he is not confortable with his know edge
of the subject nmatter; but he knows the 29 pages of
| egislation the committee is dealing with are very inportant.
He said he hopes that Chair Seekins has asked the legal and
prof essional advisers available to the state to ook at this
| egi sl ation and advise the comm ttee.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked M. Donohue if it is the LLC
managenent agreenent the conmttee is tal king about.

MR. DONOHUE said yes, that is what is being negotiated.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if there has been any discussion
about the LLC operating agreenent.

MR. DONOHUE said that there have been discussions, but he is
not sure where they stand.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said that an LLC operates on two
gui del i nes, a nanagenent agreenent and an operating agreenent.
The first to pass is the nanagenent agreenent that defines the
menbers’ rights within the organi zation. Then the parties to
t he managenent agreenment devel op the operating agreenent that
defines how the organization will function and how the noney
will flow through the operation. He has no expectation that
there will be an operating agreenent by the tinme the contract
comes up for ratification; it may take three years before that
is developed. As all Pipeco will do is to set up the public
entity that will becone a nenber of the managenent agreenent.

SENATOR GREEN asked if there is a different standard required
when a governnent entity is involved.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS responded that he asked that question
yest erday, specifically regardi ng Sarbanes- Oxl ey.

4:54:59 PM

MR. DONOHUE said that Louisiana Cutler is looking into it. He
responded to Senator Ben Stevens that the managenent and
operating agreenents are very closely related, even if they
are not created sinultaneously.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS agreed that they are closely related, but

stressed that the LLC operating agreenment evolves through
participation of the nmenbers and is constantly changi ng.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 36- June 2, 2006



4:56: 59 PM
SENATOR BEN STEVENS voi ced concern about the establishnment of

the corporation that wll become a nenber of the LLC, and
commented that he will feel better when he has actually seen
the LLC agreenent. He does not have nuch concern about the
operating agreenent, because the LLC will manage that.

4:58:14 PM

CHAI R SEEKI NS acknowl edged Senator Bettye Davi s.

4:58: 36 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that the commttee will neet at 9:00 am
Saturday and will have comments from BP, ConocoPhillips, and

ExxonMobi |, foll owed by public coment on SB 2003 and SB 2004.

4:59:14 PM
He said that on Sunday at 2:00 pm the conmttee would
entertain anendnents from nenbers. He requested that

| egislative legal services draft the anendnents and that they
be provided to his staff person, Brian Hove.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that the comittee m ght begi n
consi deration of anmendments on Saturday if there is tine.

ADJOURN 5: 00: 27 PM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 37- June 2, 2006



